
 

Area 1 

Mickey Thayer 

Area 2 

Mary Gonzales-Gomez 

Area 3 

Tawny Robinson  

Area 4 

Adam T. Medeiros 

Area 5 

Alicia Ramirez 

 
Kings County Board of Education 

BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Wednesday, March 10, 2021 

3:00 p.m. 

Kings County Office of Education, 1144 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230 

On March 12, 2020, as part of a larger effort to address the outbreak of COVID-19, Governor Gavin Newsom issued an 
executive order allowing state and local legislative bodies to hold meetings via conference calls. Board members may attend 
regular, special, or emergency meetings by telephone (or video conference), and the Governor's executive order waives 
requirements which normally apply to teleconference attendance. Some or all board members may attend this meeting by 
phone. 

 
1. Call to Order ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 

2. Pledge of Allegiance ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard. The 
Board may limit comment to no more than 3 minutes and the total time for public input on an agenda item shall 
not exceed 20 minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM: 
 

3. Kings County Office of Education Budget Study Session 2021-2022 ~ Jamie Dial & Ivo Denham 

4. Adjourn 
 

 



 

Area 1 

Mickey Thayer 

Area 2 

Mary Gonzales-Gomez 

Area 3 

Tawny Robinson  

Area 4 

Adam T. Medeiros 

Area 5 

Alicia Ramirez 

 
Kings County Board of Education 

Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, March 10, 2021 

4:00 p.m. 

Kings County Office of Education, 1144 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230 

On March 12, 2020, as part of a larger effort to address the outbreak of COVID-19, Governor Gavin Newsom issued an 
executive order allowing state and local legislative bodies to hold meetings via conference calls. Board members may attend 
regular, special, or emergency meetings by telephone (or video conference), and the Governor's executive order waives 
requirements which normally apply to teleconference attendance. Some or all board members may attend this meeting by 
phone. 

Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone by clicking on the link below: 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://kingscoe.zoom.us/j/85434644772?pwd%3DTXk5bk5jOE1qSzV2V3Jxb3o0Nj
RUZz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1615335067393000&usg=AOvVaw30iKatFcanhpyVBwm1T6Nk 

 

1. Call to Order ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 

2. Pledge of Allegiance ~ President Gonzales-Gomez 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard. The 
Board may limit comment to no more than 3 minutes and the total time for public input on an agenda item shall 
not exceed 20 minutes. 
 
ACTION: 

3. Approve Minutes of February 10, 2021, Regular Meeting ~ President Gonzales-Gomez (Pgs. 1-4) 

4. Approve Recognition of Gene Billingsley Classroom Award ~ Leana Cantrell 

5. Approve Temporary County Certificates ~ Michelle Shannon (Pg. 5) 

6. Approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators ~ Michelle Shannon (Pgs. 6-11) 

7. Approve 2021-2022 School Calendars ~ Lisa Horne (Pgs. 12-18) 

8. Approve 2020-2021 Second Interim Report ~ Jamie Dial & Ivo Denham (Pgs. (19-165) 

9. Approve Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement for 2020-21 Fiscal Year ~ Ivo Denham (Pgs. 166-

167) 

10. Approve Board Policy 0420.4 Charter School Authorization (2nd reading) ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 168-174) 
 
DISCUSSION: 

1. Consolidated Application ~ Joy Santos (Pgs. 175-182) 

2. Review Disposal of Fixed Assets ~ Ivo Denham (Pgs. 183-184) 

3. Superintendent’s Report ~ Todd Barlow 

COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD 

Disclaimer: Public health officials recommend against large gatherings and that anyone attending today’s meeting does so at 
their own risk. We may limit the number of attendees, and we will ensure social distancing is practiced. Effective December 5, 
2020, and per CDPH guidelines masks are required to be worn. 

Coming Events 
 

Next Board Meeting: Regular Board Meeting ~ April 14, 2021 ~ 4:00 p.m. 

Spring Break ~ March 29, 2021 ~ April 5, 2021 

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://kingscoe.zoom.us/j/85434644772?pwd%3DTXk5bk5jOE1qSzV2V3Jxb3o0NjRUZz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1615335067393000&usg=AOvVaw30iKatFcanhpyVBwm1T6Nk
https://www.google.com/url?q=https://kingscoe.zoom.us/j/85434644772?pwd%3DTXk5bk5jOE1qSzV2V3Jxb3o0NjRUZz09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1615335067393000&usg=AOvVaw30iKatFcanhpyVBwm1T6Nk


1



2



3



4



Temporary County Certificates 
January/February/March 

 

\\solo.kings.k12.ca.us\frroot\cathym\Documents\H Drive Files\BOARD\AGENDA\2020-
21CoBoardAgenda\031021CoBoardAgenda\TemporaryCountyCertificates.docx 

Kings Co. District’s Consortium (Substitutes) 
Espinoza, Jorge – Emergency Career Substitute Permit 
Jones, Garrett- Emergency Career Substitute Permit 
Portugal, Ryan – Emergency Career Substitute Permit, Renewal 
Tuman, Reagan – Emergency Career Substitute Permit, Renewal 
 
Central Union SD 
Conover, Taylor – Emergency Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave: Multiple Subject 
 
Corcoran Unified SD 
Retano Cardenas, Jose – Emergency Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave: Multiple 
Subject; Special Education  
 
Hanford Joint Union High SD 
Rodriguez, Ernest – Emergency GELAP Renewal, Physical Education 
Marez, Bernardo – Preliminary Designated Subjects Credential: Special Subject, 
Reserve Officers Training Corps (ROTC) 
 
Lemoore Elementary SD 
Roberts, Kevin – Waiver Designated Special Subjects: Driver’s Education 
 
Kings County Office of Education 
Almanzar, Genevieve – Preliminary Administrative Service Credential 
Juarez, Vicky – Preliminary Career and Technical Education (CTE), Health Science and 
Medical Technology 
Juarez, Vicky – Waiver Certificate of Completion of Staff Development, CTE-Health 
Science and Medical Technology 
 

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



COVER SHEET 
FOR 

BOARD ACTION ITEMS 
 

March 10, 2021 
 
 

TOPIC: 2021-2022 School Year Calendars 
 
ISSUE: The Kings County Superintendent of Schools 

presents the 2021-2022 School Year Calendars as 
follows: 

 KCOE School Year Work Calendar 
 J.C. Montgomery School Calendar 
 Shelly Baird School Calendar 
 
BACKGROUND: Annually, the County Office of Education develops 

a workday calendar for KCOE staff and school 
calendars for both J.C. Montgomery and Shelly 
Baird. Also included in your packet is an 
accompanying document that details MOC days, 
holidays, and other specifics for the upcoming 
school year. 

 
RESOURCE: Lisa Horne, Assistant Superintendent, HR 
 Kings County Office of Education 
 1144 W. Lacey Blvd. 
 Hanford, CA 93230 
 559-589-7094 
 Lisa.horne@kingscoe.org 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The calendars have been reviewed by our 

bargaining units, leadership team, and other 
interested parties. Kings County school district 
calendars are considered and our school calendars 
are aligned to the extent possible. I recommend the 
Kings County Board of Education approve the 
2021-2022 school calendars. 

 

12



Employee Name: __________________________ Employee ID #: ___________

Job Title: ________________________________ Department: _________________________________

Holiday Early out - 1 Hour Modified Office Closure E Equalization Day

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S
1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31
Holidays: 1 Holidays: 0 Holidays: 1 Holidays: 0
Scheduled: 21 Scheduled: 22 Scheduled: 21 Scheduled: 21

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28

MOC Closure: 3 30 31
Holidays: 3 Holidays: 4 Holidays: 1 Holidays: 1
Scheduled: 19 Scheduled: 16 Scheduled: 20 Scheduled: 19

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 E 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 26
27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30

1
Holidays:  0 Holidays: 1 Holidays: 1 Holidays: 0
Scheduled: 23 Scheduled: 20 Scheduled: 21 Scheduled: 22

= Paid Holidays = Paid Holidays

= Scheduled Work Days

= Scheduled Work Days

TOTAL SCHEDULED 

= Total Days in Salary WORK DAYS: 

NON - MANAGEMENT CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES ONLY:

(Generally employees are not allowed to begin work before 7:00 am)

My lunch time is from

Employee Signature _________________________________________________           Date __________

Dept. Manager/School Admin. Signature ________________________________           Date __________

JANUARYDECEMBER

SEPTEMBER

(lunch time MUST be taken by the 5th hour for 8 hour 

employees and by the 4th hour for 6 hour employees)

am/pm

My work hours are from am/pm to am/pm

am/pm to

260

JULY

CLASSIFIED MANAGEMENT

OCTOBER

CERTIFICATED AND SENIOR

JUNEMARCH MAYAPRIL

FEBRUARY

AUGUST

NOVEMBER

Equalization: 

( Must be in paid

status before or after the holiday)

CLASSIFIED Non-260 Day Employees:

260

1

248

=

= Total Days

CLASSIFIED 260 Day Employees:

= Total Days

13

Equalization non-paid, non-working

KCOE SCHOOL YEAR WORK CALENDAR
2021 - 2022

13



2021 - 2022 Work Year 

Modified Office Closure and Other Calendar Information 

We will be continuing with our Modified Office Closure (MOC) plan in the 2021-2022 school 
year. It will include weekdays that fall between December 25th and December 31st.  

On these MOC days, all staff, unless specifically notified by their manager to the contrary, will 
be required to be off work. (There may be a few specific employees who will be required to work on 
the MOC days to conduct necessary functions, such as payroll. Those employees will be notified and will 
work with their manager to set their schedule/calendar.) 

Staff who work less than 260 days per year should schedule the MOC days as a non-scheduled 
day, staff who work 260 days, will need to plan to use vacation time for the MOC days. All KCOE 
facilities/offices will be closed to the public on MOC days. 

The Modified Office Closure dates for the 2021 – 2022 School Year are as follows: 

Monday, December 27, Tuesday, December 28, Wednesday, December 29 

December 22 and January 3 will be the days used in consideration of classified employees 
required to be in paid status during any portion of the working day immediately preceding or 
succeeding the holidays observed on Dec. 23, 24, 30, and 31. 

For your convenience, other important calendar dates / holiday observations for the 21-22 
school year are included below: 

July 5 Independence Day  Dec. 31 New Year's Day 
Sept. 6 Labor Day  Jan. 17 Martin Luther King Day 
Nov. 11 Veteran's Day  Feb. 14 President's Day 
Nov. 25 & 26 Thanksgiving  April 15 Equalization Day 
Dec. 23 & 24 Christmas Holiday  April 18 Lincoln’s Birthday (obs) 
Dec. 30 New Year’s Eve  May 30 Memorial Day 

 

 

The Superintendent has declared a common 1-hour early release day before the 
Thanksgiving, winter and spring recess for all students and staff to be observed at the 
end of the regular work day. Those early release days are designated as the following: 

Nov. 19, 2021, Dec. 17, 2021, April 8, 2022 
 

Only staff actually working ‘in the seat’ at the designated time of the early release 
on the designated day will be released from work 1-hour earlier than their normal. 

14



 

 
 
Notes:  
Student Instructional Days 233, Teacher Work Days 217 (213 student instructional days & 4 non‐instructional workdays) 
Legal Holidays 13, Board Declared Holidays 7 

J.C. Montgomery School Calendar 

2021 ‐ 2022 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

JULY 
19 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

      1 
Teacher Work 

Day 

2 
Teacher Work 

Day

5 
 Independence 

Day (obs) 

6  

First Student Day 
7  8  9 

12  13  14  15  16 

19  20  21  22  23 

26  27  28  29  30 

     School in Session                Non‐School Day or Holiday      Superintendent Approved:         Board Approved: 

AUGUST 
22 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

2  3  4 
 

5 
 

6 
 

9 
 

10 
 

11 
 

12  13 

16  17  18  19  20 

23  24  25  26  27 

30  31       

SEPTEMBER 
21 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

    1  2  3 

6 
Labor Day 

7  8  9  10 

13  14  15  16  17 
End of 1st Quarter

20  21  22  23  24 

27  28  29  30   

 

OCTOBER 
21 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

        1 

4  5  6  7  8 
 

11 
 

12  13  14  15 

18  19  20  21  22 

25  26  27  28  29 

DECEMBER 
13 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

    1  2  3 

6  7  8  9  10 

13  14  15  16  17 
End 1st Semester 
1 Hour Early Out

20  21  22  23  24 

27 
 

28  29  30  31 

NOVEMBER 
19 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

1  2  3  4  5 

8  9  10 
 

11 
 Veteran’s Day 

12 

15  16  17  18  19 
1 Hour Early Out 

22  23  24 
 

25 
 

26 

29  30       

******Thanksgiving recess******* 
**************************Winter Recess ************************** 

**************************Winter Recess ************************** 

15



 

 
 
Notes:  
Student Instructional Days 233, Teacher Work Days 217 (213 student instructional days & 4 non‐instructional workdays) 
Legal Holidays 13, Board Declared Holidays 7 

J.C. Montgomery School Calendar 

2021 ‐ 2022 

 

JUNE 
21 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

    1  2  

 
3 
 

6  7  8  9  10 

13  14  15  16  17 

20  21  22  23  24 

27  28 
 

29 
Last Day of 
School 

30  

Teacher Work 
Day

 

JANUARY 
19 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

3 
Teacher Work 

Day 

4  5  6  7 
 

10  11  12  13  14 

17 
Martin Luther 

King Day 

18  19  20  21 

24  25  26  27  28 

31   

FEBRUARY 
19 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

  1  2  3  4 

7 
 

8  9  10  11 

14 
President’s Day 

15  16  17  18 

21  22  23  24  25 

28         

MARCH 
23 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

  1  2  3  4 

7 
 

8  9  10  11 

14  15  16  17  18 
 

21  22  23  24  25 
End 3rd Quarter 

28  29  30  31   

 

APRIL 
15 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

        1 

4 
 

5  6  7  8 
1 Hour Early Out 

11  12  13  14  15 

18 
 

19  20  21  22 

25  26  27  28  29 

MAY 
21 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

2  3  4  5  6 

9  10  11  12  13 

16  17  18  19  20 

23  24  25  26  27 

30 
Memorial Day 

31       

************************Spring Recess ************************ 

16



 

 
 
Notes:  
Student Instructional Days 180, Teacher Work Days 186 (180 student instructional days & 6 non‐instructional workdays) 
Legal Holidays 12 

Shelly Baird School Calendar 

2021 ‐ 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

JULY 
School Not In Session 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

      1 
 

2 
 

5 
 

6  7  8  9 

12  13  14  15  16 

19  20  21  22  23 

26  27  28  29  30 

    School in Session                 Non‐School Day or Holiday            Superintendent Approved:       

AUGUST 
14 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

2  3  4 
 

5 
Teacher Work 

Day

6 
Teacher Work 

Day

9 
Teacher Work 

Day

10 
Teacher Work 

Day

11 
Teacher Work 

Day 

12 
 First Day of 

School

13 

16  17  18  19  20 

23  24  25  26  27 

30  31       

SEPTEMBER 
21 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

    1  2  3 

6 
Labor Day 

7  8  9  10 

13  14  15  16  17 

20  21  22  23  24 

27  28  29  30   

 

OCTOBER 
20 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

        1 

4  5  6  7  8 
End of 1st Quarter

11 
Teacher Work 

Day

12  13  14  15 

18  19  20  21  22 

25  26  27  28  29 

DECEMBER 
13 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

    1  2  3 

6  7  8  9  10 

13  14  15  16  17 
End 1st Semester 
1 Hour Early Out

20  21  22  23  24 

27 
 

28  29  30  31 

NOVEMBER 
16 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

1  2  3  4  5 

8  9  10 
 

11 
 Veteran’s Day 

12 

15  16  17  18  19 
1 Hour Early Out 

22  23  24 
 

25 
 

26 

29  30       

**************************Thanksgiving Recess************************ 
**************************Winter Recess ************************** 

**************************Winter Recess ************************** 

17



 

 
 
Notes:  
Student Instructional Days 180, Teacher Work Days 186 (180 student instructional days & 6 non‐instructional workdays) 
Legal Holidays 12 

Shelly Baird School Calendar 

2021 ‐ 2022 

 

JUNE 
3 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

    1  2  

 
3 

Last Day of 
School 

6  7  8  9  10 

13  14  15  16  17 

20  21  22  23  24 

27  28 
 

29 
 

30   

JANUARY 
15 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

3  4  5  6  7 
 

10  11  12  13  14 

17 
Martin Luther 

King Day 

18  19  20  21 

24  25  26  27  28 

31   

FEBRUARY 
19 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

  1  2  3  4 

7 
 

8  9  10  11 

14 
President’s Day 

15  16  17  18 

21  22  23  24  25 

28         

MARCH 
23 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

  1  2  3  4 

7 
 

8  9  10  11 

14  15  16  17  18 
End 3rd Quarter 

21  22  23  24  25 
 

28  29  30  31   

 

APRIL 
15 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

        1 

4 
 

5  6  7  8 
1 Hour Early Out 

11  12  13  14  15 

18 
 

19  20  21  22 

25  26  27  28  29 

MAY 
21 School Days 

Monday  Tuesday  Wednesday  Thursday  Friday 

2  3  4  5  6 

9  10  11  12  13 

16  17  18  19  20 

23  24  25  26  27 

30 
Memorial Day 

31       

************************Spring Recess ************************ 

******************Winter Recess Continued ******************** 

18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



COVER SHEET FOR
ACTION ITEM

DATE: March 10, 2021

TOPIC: Board Policy 0420.4: Charter School 
Authorization

ISSUE: Recent charter school legislation needs to be 
incorporated into our board policy. 

BACKGROUND: Our policy was last updated in 2004. This 
policy provides information on the process for 
reviewing, approving, denying, and appealing a 
charter petition.  

RESOURCE:                                Joy Santos
Interim Assistant Superintendent, Educational 
Services
joy.santos@kingscoe.org
559-589-7068

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends approval of the 
revised board policy.

168

mailto:joy.santos@kingscoe.org


Kings County Office of Education
Board Policy
BP 0420.4 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans

 CHARTER SCHOOLS SCHOOL AUTHORIZATION

The Governing Board recognizes that charter schools may assist the district in offering 
diverse learning opportunities for students. In considering any petition to establish a 
charter school within the district, the Board shall give thoughtful consideration to the 
potential of the charter school to provide students with a high-quality education that 
enables them to achieve to their fullest potential. 

One or more persons may submit a petition to the Board for a charter school to be 
established within the district or for the conversion of an existing district school to a 
charter school. (Education Code 47605)

The Superintendent or designee shall consult with legal counsel, as appropriate, 
regarding compliance of the charter petition with legal requirements. 

The Superintendent or designee may work with charter school petitioners prior to the 
formal submission of the petition in order to ensure compliance of the petition with legal 
requirements.  As needed, the Superintendent or designee may also meet with the 
petitioners to establish workable plans for contracted services which the district may 
provide to the proposed charter school. 

The Board shall not require any district student to attend the charter school nor shall it 
require any district employee to work at the charter school. (Education Code 47605)

Within 60 days of receiving a charter petition, the Board shall hold a public hearing on 
the charter provisions, at which time the Board shall consider the level of support for the 
petition by teachers, other district employees, and parents/guardians. A petition is 
deemed received on the day the petitioner submits a petition to the district office, along 
with a signed certification that the petitioner deems the petition to be complete. 
(Education Code 47605)

The Board shall either grant or deny the petition at a public hearing held within 90 days 
of receiving the petition, or within 120 days with the consent of both the petitioner and 
the Board. (Education Code 47605)
(cf. 9320 – Meetings and Notices)

At least 15 days before the public hearing at which the Board will grant or deny the 
charter, the district shall publish all staff recommendations regarding the petition, 
including any recommended findings and, if applicable, certification from the County 
Superintendent of Schools regarding the potential fiscal impact of the charter school on 
the district. During the public hearing, the petitioners shall have equal time and 
opportunity to present evidence and testimony in response to the staff recommendations 
and findings. (Education Code 47605)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain accurate records, in relation to each 

169



BP 0420.4 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans
Page ~ 2 ~

charter petition, of documents submitted, the Board’s proceedings, and the findings 
upon which the Board’s decision is made. 

Approval of Petition

A charter petition shall be granted only if the Board is satisfied that doing so is 
consistent with sound educational practice and the interests of the community in is 
which the school is proposing to locate.  In granting charters, the Board shall consider 
the academic needs of the students the charter school proposes to serve and shall give 
preference to petitions that demonstrate the capability to provide comprehensive 
learning experiences for students who are identified by the petitioner as academically 
low-achieving, based on standards established by California Department of Education 
(CDE).  (Education Code 47605)

Prior to authorizing any charter, the Board shall verify that the charter includes adequate 
processes and measures for monitoring and holding the school accountable for fulfilling 
the terms of its charter and complying with all applicable laws, including Education Code 
47604.1.  Such processes and measures shall include, but are not limited to, fiscal 
accountability of any part of the charter school, and regular reports to the Board.
(cf. 0420.41 – Charter School Oversight)

The approval or denial of a charter petition shall not be controlled by collective 
bargaining agreements nor subject to review or regulation by the Public Employment 
Relations Board. (Education Code 47611.5) 

The Board may approve one or more memoranda of understanding to clarify the financial 
and operational agreements between the district and the charter school.  Any such 
memorandum of understanding shall be annually reviewed by the Board and charter 
school governing body and amended as necessary.

The Board may initially grant a charter for a specified term not to exceed five years. 
(Education Code 47607)
(cf. 0420.42 – Charter School Renewal)
(cf. 0420.43 – Charter School Revocation)

When a petition is approved by the Board, it shall be the responsibility of the petitioners 
to provide written notice of the Board’s approval and a copy of the charter to the County 
Superintendent of Schools, the CDE, and the State Board of Education (SBE).  (Education 
Code 47605)

Denial of Petition 

The Board shall summarily deny any charter petition that proposes to:

1. Operate a charter school as or by a for-profit corporation, a for-profit educational 
management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization (Education 
Code 47604)

2. Convert a private school to a charter school. (Education Code 47602)

3. Serve students in a grade level that is not served by the district, unless the petition 
proposes to serve students in all the grade levels served by the district (Education Code 

170



BP 0420.4 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans
Page ~ 2 ~

47605)

4. Offer non-classroom-based instruction (Education Code 47612.7)

Regarding all other charter petitions, the Board shall deny a petition only if the Board 
makes written factual findings specific to the petition that one or more of the following 
conditions exist: (Education Code 47605; 5 CCR 11967.5.1)

1. The charter school presents an unsound educational program that has a likelihood of 
physical, educational, or psychological harm to, or which is not likely to provide an 
educational benefit for, the students to be enrolled in the charter school.

2. The petitioners are demonstrably unlikely to successfully implement the program set 
forth in the petition.

3. The petition does not contain the number of signatures required.

4. The petition does not contain a clear, unequivocal statement described in Education 
Code 47605(e), including that the charter school will be nonsectarian and that the school 
shall not charge tuition or discriminate against any student based on the characteristics 
specified in Education Code 220. 

5. The petition does not contain reasonably comprehensive descriptions of the charter 
provisions in Education Code 47605(c).

6. The petition does not contain a declaration as to whether or not the charter school 
shall be deemed the exclusive public employer of the school’s employees for purposes 
of collective bargaining pursuant to Government Code 3540-3549.3

7. The charter school is demonstrably unlikely to serve the interests of the entire 
community in which the school is proposing to locate. Analysis of this finding shall 
include consideration of the fiscal impact of the proposed charter school. A written 
factual finding shall detail specific facts and circumstances regarding:

a. The extent to which the proposed charter school would substantially undermine 
existing services, academic offerings, or programmatic offerings.

b. Whether the proposed charter school would duplicate a program currently offered 
within the district, when the existing program has sufficient capacity for the 
students proposed to be served within reasonable proximity to where the charter 
school intends to locate.

8. The district is not positioned to absorb the fiscal impact of the proposed charter 
school. The district meets the criterion if it has a negative interim certification, or has a 
qualified interim certification and the County Superintendent certifies that approving the 
charter school would result in the district having a negative certification.

The Board shall not deny a petition based on the actual or potential costs of serving 
students with disabilities, nor shall it deny a petition solely because the charter school 
might enroll students with disabilities who reside outside the special education local 
plan area in which the district participates. (Education Code 47605.7, 47647)

171



BP 0420.4 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans
Page ~ 2 ~

Appeals

If the Board denies a petition, the petitioner may choose to submit the petition to the 
County Board of Education and, if then denied by the County Board, to SBE. (Education 
Code 47605)

At the request of the petitioner, the Board shall prepare the documentary record, 
including a transcript of the public hearing at which the Board denied the charter, no 
later than 10 business days after the petitioner makes the request. (Education Code 
47605)

Within 30 days of receipt of an appeal submitted to SBE, the Board may submit a written 
opposition to SBE detailing, with specific citations to the documentary record, how the 
Board did not abuse its discretion in denying the petition. (Education Code 47605)

If SBE remands the petition to the Board because the petition on appeal contains new or 
different material terms, the Board shall reconsider the petition and grant or deny the 
petition within 30 days. (Education Code 47605)

1. It is the Policy of the Kings County Office of Education and Kings County Board of 
Education to provide quality education that meets individual student needs.

2. The Governing Board believes that charter schools provide one opportunity to implement 
school-level reform and to support innovations which improve student learning. These 
schools shall operate under the provisions of their charters, federal laws, specified state 
laws and general oversight of the Board.

3. A petition may be submitted to a school district or County Board of Education for the 
Establishment of a charter school at which time the governing board will review after 
either of the following criteria are met:

(A) The petition has been signed by a number of parents or guardians of 
pupils that is equivalent to at least one-half of the number of pupils that 
the charter school estimates will enroll in the school for its first year of 
operation.

(B) The petition has been signed by a number of teachers that is equivalent 
to at least one-half of the number of teachers that the charter school 
estimates will be employed at the school during its first year of operation.

(C) If the charter petition calls for an existing public school to be converted to 
a charter school, at least one-half of the permanent status teachers 
currently employed at the school must sign the petition.

4. If the governing board of a school district denies a petition, the petitioner may elect to 
submit the petition to either the County Board of Education or directly to the State Board 
of Education.

5. In determining whether to grant or deny a charter, the Board shall carefully review the 
proposed charter and any supplementary information, consider public and staff input, 
and determine whether the charter petition adequately addresses all the provisions 
required by law.  The Board shall not deny a charter school petition unless specific 
written factual findings are made pursuant to law and administrative regulation.

172



BP 0420.4 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans
Page ~ 2 ~

6. The Board shall ensure than any charter granted by the Board contains adequate 
processes and measures for holding the school accountable for fulfilling the terms of its 
charter.  These shall include, but not be limited to, fiscal accountability systems as well 
as multiple measures for evaluating the educational program.  To assist the Board in its 
general oversight responsibility, charters shall provide regular reports to the Board 
related to the charter provisions.

Reference
Education Code 
200 Equal rights and opportunities in state educational institutions
220 Nondiscrimination
1240 Duties of County Superintendent
17078.52-17078.66 Charter schools facility funding; state bond proceeds
17280-17317 Field Act
17365-17374 Field Act, fitness for occupancy
32282 Comprehensive safety plan
33126 School Accountability Report Card
41365 Charter school revolving loan fund
42131 Interim certification
42238.51-42238.2 Funding for charter districts
44237 Criminal record summary
44830.1 Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony
45122.1 Classified employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony
46201 Instructional minutes
47600-47616.5 47616.7 Charter Schools Act of 1992
47640-47647  Special education funding for charter schools
47650-47652  Funding of charter schools
49011  Student fees
51745-51749.6  Independent study
52052  Accountability:  numerically significant student subgroups
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan
56026  Special education
56145-56146  Special education services in charter schools
CORPORATIONS CODE
5110-6910  Nonprofit public benefit corporations
GOVERNMENT CODE
1090-1099  Prohibitions applicable to specified officers
3540-3549.3  Educational Employment Relations Act
6250-6270  California Public Records Act
54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act
81000-91014  Political Reform Act of 1974
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
11700.1-11705  Independent study
11960-11968.5.5  Charter schools
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
7223-7225  Charter schools
COURT DECISIONS
Ridgecrest Charter School v. Sierra Sands Unified School District, (2005) 130 Cal.App.4th 
986
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
Opinion No. 11-201 (2018)

173



BP 0420.4 
Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans
Page ~ 2 ~

89 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 166 (2006)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 52 (1997)
78 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 297 (1995)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Uncharted Waters:  Recommendations for Prioritizing Student Achievement and Effective 
Governance in California's Charter Schools, September 2018
Charter Schools in Focus, Issue 1:  Managing the Petition Review Process, Governance 
Brief, November 2016
Charter Schools and Board Member Responsibilities, Education Insights Legal Update 
Webcast, March 2016
Charter Schools:  A Guide for Governance Teams, rev. February 2016
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Sample Copy of a Memorandum of Understanding
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter:  Guidance Regarding the Oversight of Charter Schools Program 
and Regulatory Requirements, including the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, August 2016
Charter Schools Program:  Title V, Part B of the ESEA, Nonregulatory Guidance, January 
2014
Guidance on the Voluntary Use of Race to Achieve Diversity and Avoid Racial Isolation in 
Elementary and Secondary Schools, December 2011
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Charter Schools Association:  http://www.ccsa.org
California Department of Education, Charter Schools:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/cs
National Association of Charter School Authorizers:  http://www.qualitycharters.org
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov

Adopted by Board: January 5, 2000

Reviewed by Board: February 4, 2004
Reviewed by Board:

174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184


	031021Agenda
	MinutesOf021021
	TemporaryCountyCertificates
	DeclarationOfNeedForFullyQualifiedEducators
	2021-22SchoolCalendars
	CV-Calendars March 21
	21-22 Work Day Calendar
	21-22

	work year calendar updates 21-22
	Monday, December 27, Tuesday, December 28, Wednesday, December 29

	JCM School Calendar 21-22
	Baird School Calendar 21-22

	2020-21SecondInterimReport
	DisclosureOfCollective BargainingAgreement
	BP0420.4CharterSchoolAuthorization
	ConsolidatedApplication
	DisposalOfFixedAssets



